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Mrs. CLARKs

it A SR

int 8 it .
-EEE mf&g&HE unjuftifiable Treatment

T @ of this worthy Lady as a
o $gm Lunatick, having made fo
% F: %™ much Noife in the Town,
I perfuade my felf, that this impar-
tial and concife Account of the Mat-
ter of Fa&t, as well as the Oblerva-
tions made upon it, will not be un-
acceptable to the Publick.

Mrs. Clark, a Gentlewonan of Se-
venty Three Yearsof Age, was look'd
upon as Diftratted by her Relations,
ead were confirm’d in their Opinion
by the Judgment of Four Fhy 1cia1}1ls,'

who
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they made good by many convincing
Circumftances ; and upon her own
giving a long, but coherent and moving
Account of the whole Cafe, and her
barbarous Ulage; my Lord, having or-
dered that fhe fhould be fet at Liberty,
and that her Houfe and Goeods thould
be reftor’d, feverely reprimanded her
Relations for their difhonourable Be-
haviour in this Affair; in the mean time
he atted tenderly with refpect to the
Credit of the Dottors, one of whom has
the Honour to be his Lordfhip’s own
Phyfician.

N. B. The Lord Chief Juftice put
to Mrs. Clark the Affidavits ot the Phy-
ficians, upon which they grounded their
Judgments of her Maduefs ; all which
Paflages of Wordsand Ations {he well
remembered, gave a rational Account
of them, and fhewd plainly, that
they were vilely turned agamft her.

One Phyfcian’s Depofition was this,
that {he fancied the had fwallow’d Glafs,
which wasMatter of Fat, but it was by
Accident, as it was fully prov’d at the
Hearing, B Dr.
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fuch licentious Practices fhould prevail,
what can we expelt, but that a terrible
Perfecution may foon be {et on Foot by
the violent Inquifitors of Morfields, who

upon the mofit flender and inconclufive
Suggeftions, may fend out their inhu-

mane Oficers to teize, confine and - tor- .

ture any Perfons, whofe Underftandings
they fhall pretend are fallen to decay,
or who upon the flightelt Grounds, and
from difhonourable Views, are by near
Relations informed againft as frantick

Hereticks, and Apoftates from natural

Light and common Serife. |

It is an Inftance of great Opprefiion
and Inhumanity for the Doltors, upon
{fuch mfignificant and frivolous Allegati-
ons as were brought againft Murs. Clark,
to take away her Liberty and treat her
with Violence, as a Diftratted Perfon ;
for if upon account of fome Singularity
in Manners, any peculiar Oddnefs of
Temper, or whimfical Caprice, which
however did ‘mot ‘appear.in' this Cafe,
Perfons may be taken up by the Lictors
and Apparitors of Bedlam, may be chain’d,

1m-
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den, while the Plague of Diftralion
would be rife and univerfal, and Keep-
ers would be wanting to attend the Lu-
naticks.

This Way of Proceeding without
Proof, and treating pretended Madmen
with Force and Cruelty, 1s indeed as an
effe¢tual Way tomake a fober Man mad,
as to cure one that is fo; and this Ad-
vantage {uch Do&tors will have, that
thofe whom they did not find, they
will make Lunaticks, and then the {ub-
{fequent Marks of Diftraction fhall be al-
ledg’d to back and juftify the firft unrea-
{onable Charge.

Could it be fuppos'd that the other
Members of the learned Body of Phyfi-
cians fhould a& with equal Rafhnefs and
Indiftin¢tion in refpeét of the Patients of
this Species, 1t muft be allow’d that
there would be more than one College
of difturb’d Minds 1n this City.

But why were not gentle Methods
prefcrib'd by the Dotors at firft to re-
duce this pretended Lunatick, before

- 4 i they
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they came to Extremity ? Why did
they not diret Af’s Milk and Crabs
Claws, fo much in Fafhion, not on-
ly in the greateft chronical Diftempers,
but all inflamatory and malignant Fea-
vers ? I do not know whether thefe
powerful Remedies have been yet direét-
ed in Apoplexies, and for Prevention of
fuddain Death : But I am inform’d there
is a Differtation ready for the Prefs, in
which they are recommended to be us'd
in Clyfters, inftead of Cow’s Milk and

ar, for the cure of the moft inveterate
and obftinate Difeafes ; whence it ap-
pears, that the Milk of the Afs and
the Claws of the Crab are endow’d
with as great Variety of Wonder-
working Vertues, as the Prayer ad-
drefs'd to the Virgin Mary for Women
in Labour, which was formd and print-
ed fome Years ago in Fyancs, to which
as a Poftfcript was added, Aud this
Prayer is likewife good for Feavers and
Thunder. Now why, 1 fay, were not
thefe ‘eafy, generous and pleafant Me-
| = LR dicines
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dicines firft try’d, before thofe A&ts of
Force and Cruelty were infifted on ?

It has been alledg’d that this Gen-
tlewoman appear’d diforder’d in her
Mind, from her Religious Difpofition
and frequent Strains of Devotion. Such
Qualities are indeed, .in the Opinion of
fome Phyficians, an evident Mark of a
diftemper’d Head, who attribute all
religious Principles and devout Paffions
to an exorbitant Melancholly, over-
agitated Spirits, and {plenetick Imagi-
nation. But it did not appear that this
Gentlewoman’s Piety was Enthufiaftick,
or by any Means inconfiftent with a
fouud and undifturb’d Mind ; nor was
there more Ground to believe that her
Reafon was overturn’d by too much Re-
ligion, than that the P{iculties of the
Dottors were prejudic’d by too much
Learning.

N. B. This Lady’s Relations, as
well as the Phyficians, do ftill perfift in
declaring not only that fhe was mad,

but that {he ftill continues fo ; and ﬁﬂ:&
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The Cafe of Mrs. Sarah Clerke and ber
two Brothers, Sir Edward Turnor, and
Arthur Turnor, Efg;

H E Cafe of Mrs. Clerke hds madea great

deal of Noife in all Quarters of the Town 3

and both her Relations and Phyficians
have been feverely cenfured, the One for askings
and the Other for giving fuch proper Advice as her
Condition required. The Gentlemen, whofe Re-
putations haye been chiefly ftruck at, were not at
all moved by thefe Popular and Party-Clamours,
nor thought it worth their while to take notice
of fuch Tea-Table-Talk, as would have died of
courfe in a few Weeks ; or however, have given
Way to the next Crop of Scandal, which this
fruitful and well cultivated Soil wou’d foon have
produced. But fince the World has been appealed
to in as folemn and voluminous a Manner as the
Author could rife up to, ina very dear Three-pen-
ny Pamphlet, Intituled, A4rs. Clerke’s Cafe, The
wonderful Produéion probably of one of thofe 4if-

anterefted Phyficians, who teftify’d, that fhe was of

a [ober Mind ; it might look like a Sign of Guilt to
be filent any longer; and if the Perfons afperfed,
fhould fay nothing in their own Defence, the mali-
cious World would be apt to conclude they had no-
thing to fay.

The motval and intire Affe&tion that was al-
ways between Mrs. Clerke and her two. Brothers,
Bir Edward and Mr, Arthur Turner) together Wiﬁ:

: Che A 2 t
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lain and Bridge-Mafter, that Proje& was laid afide,
as at prefent not eafily praicable. |

This indeed would have been fomewhat like the
Proceedings of the other Side, who in'two of
“Appleby’s Journals, February 22. and March 8. pub-
lifhed fuch fcandalous, but withal fuch falfe Ac-
counts of this Matter, as the Gentlemen concern-
ed thought worthy of no other Anfwer, befides
Silence and Contempt.

It is not intended in the following Account, to
anfwer either the frothy infignificant Harangues
of the Florid, or the low Witicifms and obfcure
Hints of the Satyrical Part of this Pamphlet. For
what Anfwer can be given to nothing? Or what
Anfwer need be given to what is nothing to the
Purpofe ? But the plain Matter of Fa&, as it ap-
pears in the Depofitions, which were delivered up-
on Oath, by one Party as well as the other, are here
faithfully laid before the Readers, whom for once,
we may accoft in the Language of old Saffs/d of
famous Memory, (a Perfon of equal Abilities and
Reputation with our Author or Authors) Read,
Try, Fudge, and [peak as you find !

L i

RS- Sarah Clerke went to the Bath in Offaber

. laft, 1717. and her Niece Mrs. Mary Turnor
with her, as ufual, Dr. Mead being now her Phy-
fician ever fince Dr. Radcliffe’s Death. She return-
ed home on the firft of Fanuary, where her Brother,
Sir Edward Turnor, met her that Evening, and found
her very fleepy ; but attriburing that to her Jour-
ney, left her in good Time to her Reft, and came
to her again the next Day, and fo almolt every
other Day till the 30th of Fanuary, on which Day

he fell very ill of the Gout and Stranguary, and
A 3 ftix’d
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happened to be carried down into the Kitchen ;
and her Maid, as fhe faid, carried it upinto her
Chamber, after fome time ftaying in the Kitchen:
And when Mrs. Clerke came up to Bed, the Maid
told her of it ; but Mrs. Clerke looking on it, told
her ’twas Poyfon, and fhe would not take it ; and
whilft this Humour was upon her, fhe refufed to
take her Phyfick, and every Day took Occafion to
go abroad, fometimes very early in the Morning,
and fomerimes almolt all the Afternoon. Her Bro-
ther, Sir Edward Turnor, finding this, did earneftly
beg of her to put herfelf again under the Care of
her Phyficiap; to prevent that Drowfinefs, which
elfe might ¢nd in a Lethargy 5 upon which fhe
took his Advice, and fent for Dr. Mead, and he
prefcribed her what Phyfick fhe would take; and
about once or twice fhe might take it; but that
preventing her from going abroad, fhe afterwards
refufed to take any more, pretending her Family,
and every Body about her, would poifon her : She
began firk with her Woman Aary Tyrrell, then
with her Niece, and afterwards every one in her
Family by Turns, and at laft, it fell to her Apo-
thecary and Doétor’s Share, and fhe would take no-
thing. But being often very ill in the Night,
and talking to her felf almoft all Night long, her
Brother defired ber to let fome Perfons fet up
with her, in Cafe fhe wanted any Body to affift
her, which they did for two or three Nights; and
her Niece fat up with another Perfon the firft
Night 5 but after fome few Nights, ’twas thought
more advifeable by her Brother to have her Maid
Mary Tyrell to have a Bed brought down, and
Eut into a Clofet in her own Chamber, which was
one.

But two or three Nights before this, fhe happen-
ed to be very ill in the Night, and her Maid lying
over her Head, or in the third Story, fhe rung her

A 4 Bell
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fwallow’d the Syrup, nor no Pains about her, un-
doubtedly fhe had not {wallowed any. But fhe
would not be perfwaded that fhe was not poifoned,
and fent in great hafte for Dr. Freind, who being
told by the Meflenger that a fudden unfortunate
Accident had befallen Mrs. Clerke, left his Dinner,
and came immediately to her. When the Do&or
came in, fhe told him fhe had had an Accident in
{wallowing fome Glafs, but before fhe talked of
that, muft give him an Account of her Conftitu-
tion. She began a Year or two backwards, and
gave a long and particular Account how fhe found
herfelf at the Bath ; the Doctor was a perfe& Stran-
ger to her, however, he often put in a Word to
remind her of coming to the Point of the Glafs, .
for which he was fent for in fo much hafte, but
he could not prevail, ’till the whole Hiftory was
firlt out. Upon examining the Matter, he told
her, ’twas his Opinion that fthe had not {wallowed
any Glafs, or if any little Bit had by Chance flipt
down, fhe need not fear any ill Effe@ from it :
For he would order her fome Manna, and Broths,
as he did, which would carry it off, and fhe would
hear no more of it. Accordingly the next Morn-
ing fhe fent him Word that fhe was very well.
The Doctor in a few Days after went into Yorkfhire,
without feeing her again ; but during his Abfence,
Mrs. Clerke often fent to his Houle, and would not
believe he was from home, and fometimes came
herfelf, and asked the Scrvant if Dr. Adead was
within ? |

A Day or two after that, fhe took a Fancy again,
that her Maid Tyrrel was in League with the
Apothecary’s Journey-man, and that they Two had
combined to poifon her ; and having been told that
there was a Gentlewoman who lived at Deptford
and fomewhat related to Tyrrel’s Brother, fhe
would not be fatisfied, but fent her Coachman

with
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to get another fo foon as fhe could, but defired
her at the fame Time to remember, that when fhe
was in his Houfe in Auguff and September laft, the
{aid Tyrrell had told her feveral Lies and falfe Sto-
ries of moft or all of his Servants, which his Sifter
had told him again whilft at his Houfe at Halling-
bury 5 and he begg’d of her not to meddle with
his Family as he had never done with hers. All
this while fhe would take little or no Phyfick, be-
ing f{till of Opinion that fhe fhould be poifoned.
And her Apothecary, Mr. Nickolfon, a very honeft
Man, who had ferved her almoft thirty Years, came
one Morning to her Brother’s Chamber, and even
with Tears in his Eyes complained to her Brother
of the rudenefs of old Flower, who is above 80
Years of Age, how fhe had reproach’d him with the
Dottors of an Intention to poifon her, elfe, why
would he give her fo much Leudanum ? And he
reply’d again, That Leudanum was a very im-
proper Medicine for one who was always afleep;
the reply’d, She was fure fhe wou’d be poifon’d.
And her Brother, Sir Edward, telling his Sifter of
Mrs. Flower’s Behaviour, and begging of her to be
quiet and pacified, after three or four Hours Stay
with his Sifter, went home and left her, defiring
her to confult her Phyficians.

By this Time ’twas come to be the 26th of Fa-
nuary, being Sunday, and her Brother dining with
her that Day, and asking his Daughter, whom he
thinks he faw firlt, for fhe ufed to meet him in the
Paflage to ask his Blefling; and asking her how
her Aunt did? fhe told him Dr. Mead had been with
her that Day about 12 a Clock, and had prefcrib’d
fomething, but fhe doubted fhe would not take it ;
and that Dr. Afead had told her that her Aunt
- was very much out of Order, for fhe was difturb’d
in her Head ;5 and that he would call upon Sir Ed-
wera and tell him of it ; wpon which Sir Edward

g wentr
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Head, if fhe did not fu IJire&tions more pun-
&ually than fhe yet had .one. With great Diffi-
culty they prevail’d upon her to Bleed ; and or-
dered her fome Phyfick, which fhe took next Morn-
ing. At Noon Mrs. Mafters came to
Dr. Freind, and defired him to go to Mrs. Clerke
immediately ; the Doctor faid he was at Dinner,
but would come as foon as ever he had din’d ; fhe
prefled him again to come along immediately with.
her, for Mrs. Clerke would not be fatisfied till fhe
had feen him. The Doftor went, and found her
in Bed, in violent Paflions with all her Servants,
and Mr. Nicholfon the Apothecary : The Doétor
ask’d her how her Phyfick agreed with her? fhe
faid, very well, and had anfwer’d, fhe fupposd,
what it was defign’d for ; it had given her two
Stools : But, fays fhe, I have never a faithful Ser-
vant in the Houfe ; no Body will do it for me;
I have offer’d a Guinea to Mr. Nicholfon, and he
won’t do it. The Dofor ask’d what fhe would
have done ? I would have them look into the
Chamber*?nt, faid the. When the Do&or ask’d
for what ? fhe anfwer’d, for the Glafs which you
know I {wallow’d. The Do&or endeavour’d to con-
vince her of the Abfurdity of fuch a Fancy, and
how impoflible it was any Glafs fhould be there,
that Accident of f{wallowing Glafs, if fhe had
fwallow’d any, having happen’d three Weeks a-
go. Bat nothing he could fay would pacify her;
fhe was fure there was Glafs in the Chamber-pot ;
fhe would have it fearch’d. [t was carry’'d out;
and the Do&or told her it was fearch’d, and there
was no Glafs in it : Upon which, fhe grew very
'Ear . g
ifter this, for two or three Days, fhe would do
nothing of what the Phyficians prefcrib’d, but was
perpetually vifiting or vifited. And Sir Edward
Turnor oblerving thefe and many other rambling
an
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the Afternoon, before fome Company, and told
her, that ’twas reported in the Coffee-Houfes
that fthe was mad ; and told her, that one of the
Do&ors fhe had had with her, was the Phyfician
of Bédlam, and hoped fhe would take no Phy-
fick from him, for fhe was as well as ever fthe
was in her Life. And the Phyfick coming to
her that Evening whilft he was there, and the
Plaifters ; he told her, Look here, Madam, here
are Bliftering-Plaifters, and Phyfick, I hope you
will take none of them ; and defired he might
fend them home again, which Sir Talbor Clerke
did, by her-Footman William Mills. During this
Time, her Brother Sir Edward, was taken ill of
the Gout and Stranguary, and fearing it might
hold him a long Time, he made a fhift to fee his
Sifter that Afternoon, and told her what extra-
vagant Humours fhe had taken upon her, and
begg’d very earneftly of her to be guided by her
Do&ors, left her Sicknefs fhould encreafe upon her
too faft without fome Prevention : and that he

begg’d it of her now the more earneftly, be-
' cauige he feared he fhould not fee her again in a

reat While ; as he did not, but in his own Lodg-
ings, till Thur(day the 27th of February, when he faw
her at the Lord Chief Juftice’s Chamber : And her
Brother Mr. Artbur Turnor having been fo very ill
of the Stone for above a Year, that he was not able
to ftir abroad in a Coach, nor {carce in a Chair,
fo that by both their Diftempers fhe was left to
her felf ; for her Niece had no Power with her, by
the Means of Sir Talbot Clerke and his Wife, but
particularly of Mrs. Stukeley and her 3 or 4 Sifters
the Mafters’s, who were perpetunally following poor
Mrs. Clerke, and took a little Houfe two or three
Doors from her, and were conftantly fome of them
eating and drinking at Mrs. Clerke’s, and frequent-
ly talking many Hours to her, and provoking her
b to
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And her Brother told her alfo, of her fending
to Deptford, upon Sufpicion of the Apothecary’s
{luurney-man and her Maid combinining to poifon

er, and what little Satisfaction fhe had reaped by
it : She fell into violent Paflions, and told her Bro-
ther, he would never believe any Thing fhe faid,
and that fhe would make it out ; which he told her
he could not believe ; for what could they get by
it, but to be hanged for their Pains? And he ho-
ped fhe had never deferved fuch Ufage from any Bo-
dy, for he had obferved her always to do what good
fhe could, and.fhe was always charitable to all Per-
fons who wanted her Afliftance; and therefore beg-
ged of her very earneftly to ftay at home and be
quiet,.and fend for her Docors, who he did not
doubt, but with Care, would reftore her again to her
right Judgment. But fhe fell into mighty Paflions
_ again, and fo left her Brother.

And very amazingly to her Brother, fent her
under Foot- Man William Afills, either the next
Morning, or the Morning after, with a Meflage by
Word of Mouth, that fhe defired him her Brotber,
to {fend for the Lord Harcourt, and Sir Conffantine
Phipps, and whom elfe he  thought fit, and fhe
would bring all her Family before them, and her
Brother with them fhoeuld try them all : To which
her Brother made Anfwer to William Afills, that in
his Life he never heard of fo wild a Propofition,
and bid him tell her that he defired her to be at

uiet,

- Which Footman, as her Brother has been fince in-
formed, fhe gavea Guinea to carry the Meflage, and
told him her Brother wou’d give him another; but
William Mills did not think fit to tell her Brother of
it. For which Meflage, and what happened vpon it,
See the Afhidavit of Aary Aven.

B Within
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as the faid Mrs. Flower has fince told Sir Edward ;
{o that heturn’d off none of thofe Servants, as has
been falfly fworn againft him. For when he took
Poffeflion of the Houfe, by his Servants and two
Temple Porters, they found the faid Mrs. Flower in
the Houfe, and one Katherine Evans, who had fer-
ved his Sifter 3 Years, and the two Footmen 3 and
there the two Women remained till the Weftmina
ffer Juftices broke open his Sifter’s Doors ; and the
two Footmen were told they might do I'n, if they
did not meddle or make with Affairs within Doors,
nor run out-and make Difturbance, and raife a
Mobb in the Street; which they did, — and then
they were fhut out, till the Juftices put them into
Pofleflion again, when they broke open the Doors
and carried Mrs. Clerk away with them.
During all this Time, from the 3oth of Fanuary,
Mrs. Clerk went abroad every Day, Morning and
Afternoon, till fhe was carried up to her Chamber
and confined (whlch was on Saturday, the 1s5th
of February) andin that time expofed herfelf in all
Companies, and was very angry with her Niece,
becaufe fhe avoided going abroad with her; which
her Niece did decline, becaufe fhe was fure her
Aunt would expofe her felf as fhe daily did at home,
(her Aunt receiving all Vifitors, who were pleafed
to come to her) by eternally talking, and that fo
incoherently, that her Niece was forced to keep
her Chamber, to avoid the Confufion fhe was daily
Fut in by it, and particularly the laft Week be-
ore fhe was confined ; which her Brothers were
very unwilling to do, hnpmr the belt, and that
fhe might be perfwaded to coafine her felf, which
fhe obftinately refofed. During all which time,
Sir Talbot Cfsrff\f, a Cornet of Horle, which Place
fhe procured him, and bis Wife, Mrs. Stukely, and
her 3 Silters the Mafferss, were fome, or all of them
almoft daily with her, flattering, and telling her,
B 2 fhe
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how could he do that, fince the daily, and parti-

cularly that Day, had behaved her felf fo contrary
to all Senfe and Reafon? At which fhe rofe up
i1 a Fury, and faid, well then I’ll never fee your
Face more; and go your Ways, and live with
your Three Wives, one of which your Daughter
fiw you in Bed withal. To fuch an extravagant
Paflion did her diftracted Head drive her; for when
fhe had her Senfes, fhe knew very well, (he had of-
ten propofed to her Brother to marry again, and fhe
offered him Matches, and knew he might have mar-
ried very much to his Advantage, but that he al-
ways declined it.

She kept her Word, and her Brother never faw
her again, till fhe was brought before the L.ord Chief
Juftice at his Chambers on the 29th of February,
1717.

On the laft Day which her Brother faw her, as
above-mentioned, which was February the 13th,
his Daughter fent him a Letter, with one enclofed,
which was writ to her that Morning by Mrs. Hart-
ftonge, the Bithop of London- Derry’s Widow, which
Letter (’tis defired may be perufed) and his Sifter’s
wild Difcourfe together, put him into fuch a Dif-
order, that his Hands and Fect fell a trembling
that he thought he fhould have Convulfions, which
made him fend immediately for Dr. Mead, who
could not be found till Eight a Clock at Night, and
then the Doctor came very kindly, and diretted
kim fome Medicines to take, and telling the Dottor
aof his Sifter’s Condition, how much worfe fhe was,
the Doltor reply’d, it bad been his Opinion, fhe
ought to have been confined fome Time before ;
and then Sir Edward asking him if he would Sign
fuch a Letter, and if he thought Dr. Freind, to
whom he was a perfect Stranger, won’d do the fame !
the Doctor reply’d, he would write fucha Lettcr
tg him, and that he was f{vre Dr. F eind would o

B3 the
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Thing, and would be fo lock’d upon, to confine a
Sifter whom he loved fo well ; but fhe wifely an-
fwered, ’twas better to confine her than to let her
expofe herfelf, as fhe found fhe daily did, fhe having
dined there that Day.

And Mr. Coats a Nephew of Mrs. Clerke’s Hus-
band, going to vifit her when fhe had a great deal
of Company with her in an Afternoon, he came
that Evening, being a Day or two before fhe was
confined, and told Sir Edward of moft of the
wild Difcourfe he had heard from his Aunt ; and
when Sir Edward told him they had done all
they could by Perfwafions and fair Means, he re-
ply’d, then fhe ought to be confin’d, and not pe-
mitted to expofe herfelf to all Comers, as fhe daily
did.

In that Week before her Confiment, Sir Ed-
ward fent for Augh Stone, the biggeflt of his Sifter’s
Footmen, and difcourfed with him to know if he
and his Fellow-Footmman wounld keep the Doors,
and prevent all Perfons from going up to his Mi-
ftrefs, but whom he and his Brother fhould appoint,
till fuch Time as the Do&tors had recovered her?
But that impudent Fellow refufed it, {aying, fhe was
as well as ever fthe was in her Life, and thought
fhe ought to fee whom{oever fhe pleafed, and that
fhe needed no Phyfick : Which he fwore before Sir
Harry Colt, though he had owned before (for which
fee Mary Avon’s Affidavit) that fhe was difordered,
and therefore chid William Mills for taking his Mi-
ftrefles Guinea, faying, he had lived with her about
18 Years, and fhe had never given him a Six-penny-
piece in all that Time.

And note, Mrs. Stukcley very officioufly has,
contrary to Truth, fworn very largely, That
Mrs. AMary Turnor told her Aunt that fhe was mad,
whereas it was Mrs. Sarah Gee that faid fo, for

- Mrs, Turnor did not go up Stairs with her Aunt,
B 4 but
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him, only fome Papers, which fhe faid were Verfes
which fhe had made for her Diverfion when fhe
was young, and which fhe defired him might not
be expofed 5 but he defiring her to let him have
them to put them up again, upon his earneft En-
treaty fhe did, and went to the Bed and pull’d a
Bundle out of it, wherein was fome Lottery Tick-
ets, a large Parchment which fhe told him was her
Will (and this was the firft Time we knew fhe had
a Will) and a Gold ftuff Purfe with 36 Guineas in
it ; all which fhe would have had him to keep for
her ; but when he had them, he put them all into
the Cabinet again, and lock’d it, and feal'd it with
his own Coat of Arms, and gave the Key to her
Niece Mrs. Turnor 5 and the next Morning when
Mr. Coates and Mr. Sparkes took the Inventory, thefe
before-mentioned Parcels were by them found in the
Cabinet. _

Note, Her two Brothers having been informed
that Night of what fhe had done, they thought it
the beft Way for her Advantage to fecure all her
Money, Jewels, Plate and Goods which they could
find in her Dining-room, and take an Inventory
of them, and lock and feal up the Dining-room
Doors, which they did ; having been inform’d alfo
that Sir Talbot Clerke had been with their Sifter
at her Cabinet the Thurfdey before, that fhe had
carried out with her (and he in her Company)
feveral Things, but what they could not tell ; but
Sir Talbot Clerke and fhe went out in her Coach
together, and they went to his Lodgings about
Greek-fireet, as the Coachman informed her Bro-
thers. :

For thefe Reafons, that the might not embezzle
any more of her Eftate; Then, and not till then,
did her two Brothers think it proper to lock with:
Padlocks and feal up the Dining-room, Drawing-
room, and Clofet Doors, and being both very ill,

and
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As to the Bond of the Earl Marfhal’s, Mrs, Clerke
bad faid when fhe was in her Vapours (as the Ladies
were pleas’d to call it, but indeed in her Madnefs)
that her Niece Mrs. Mary Turnor had ftole it a-
way, and fent it to the Earl Marfhal : Which her
Niece’s Father having reafon to enquire “into, he
found out one Mr. Lefley, a Scotch Gentleman, whom
he had never feen in his Life before, but had heard
his Sifter name him ; and asking him, if he knew
any thing of the faid Bond ? he told Sir Edward,
that when Mrs. Clerke was at his Houfe at Hal-
Ifngfmr_y in Effex in Auguft laft, he fent for her up
to Town to fee the Bond, that he might fend down
into Scotland to claim it before the Commiflioners
of the Forfeited Eftates, before the Time was e-
laps’d ; a Copy of which Bond he took, or the
Pate, and delivered it back again into her own
Hands before a young Gentleman, whom by the
Defcription muft be Mr. Coates, who, as was well
known, tranfacted moft of her Bufinefs—— Where-
by note, That Mrs. Turnor her Niece was then left
in the Country with her Father by her Aunt, and
fome Time after came up for a Week with
her Aunt about the Repairs of her Houfe, came
down again with her Aunt, and ftay’d with her
Father till about terny Days before fhe went with
her Aunt to the Bath, asufual, in the beginning of
Oélober 5 fo that fhe could not make away with
that Bond.

And the four Bank Notes of 5o L each being
ftill wanting, and none knowing what was become
of them, Mrs. Clerk’s Brothers having been in-
form’d, that the Thur/day before their Sifter had
been at her Cabinet with Sir Talber Clerke, and
taken feveral Things out, they feared fhe might
have given them to fome Body, either Sir Talbot or
otherPerfons for themfelves in that her Diftraction,
or to keep them for her Ufe : Ard therefore ﬁ%nt

- or
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them when fhe is capable to receive them, or to
her two Truftees whom the Lord Chief Juftice was
pleafed to appoint her, if he the Lord Chief Ju-
ftice will pleafe to fay he ought to do it. And
Dr. Bridges coming the next Day to Sir Edward
with Mr. Walcert, to tell Sir Edward that he muft
fend for his Goods out of Mrs. Clerke’s Houfe, for
fhe had Occafion for thofe Rooms for fome other
Perfon, Sir Edward reply’d, he would do it as foon
as he could ; and accordingly did fend for them
away the Monday following. Dr. Bridges at the
fame Time told him he had another Meflage to de-
liver from his Sifter, which was, to demand her
Bank-Bills ; to which Sir Edward reply’d, that he:
would not give them to him nor any Body elfe, but
to herfelf, when fhe was capable to receive them,
and to give a legal Dilcharge, then he was ready to
do it, but he would fhew them him, that he might
fee how fhe had torn them. And he telling Sir
Edward, that if they were the fame Bank-Bills there
were Pin-holes in them, for fhe had faid fhe had
pinn’d them to her Smock for fome Time; and
Sir Edward then looking upon them Piece by Piece,
fhow’d the Doctor the Pin-holes very plainly to be
difcovered ; but put them up again, telling the
Doctor they had loft Money to ftop the Payment at
the Bank ; and the Do&or replying, "Mrs. Clerke did
not take herfelf to be liable to pay-that Charge, Sir
Edward told him, that was not his Opinion; for
when fo much Kindnefs was done, Mr. Pordage who
did it, ought to be paid for his Expence.

Mrs. Clerke was confined as before mentioned
by her Brothers on Saturday the v5th of February,
Mrs. Stukely being prefent : And fhe out of great
Care and Affetion for' Mrs. Clerke, confults with
Sir Talbot Clerke and the Weftminfter- Juftice,  Sir
Harry Dutton Colt, and a great many others which
fhe had fummoned to her Houfe, how to be reveng’d

of
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urpﬂ:s bnt thinking [he muft gn to Goal imme-
diately. She hkemﬁ-: told Sir Edward, that there
was fuch a Mob gathered together about her Aunt’s
Doors, that fhe had much ado to get out, and was
afraid to return ; for it feems Mrs. Cfnkes two
Footmen, and Sir Talbot Clerke’s, and Mys. Stukely’s,
@c. had under Pretence of ﬁaeing Mrs. Clerke, kept
a continual knocking at the Door, and had rai-
fed a ftrange Tumult. But the Door-keepers ob-
ferved the Orders that had been given them, re-
fufing Entrance to all Perfons, not excepting the
wnrihlpful Juftice himfelf, unlefs he brought Sirc
Edward Turnos Order for it. Upon which he
threatened to bring a File of Mufqueteers and
break open the Doors, with other menacing Words,
what he would do, and how he would punifh them
for denying him Admittance.

When Mrs. Turnor brought the Habeas Corpus
to her Father in the Temple, he fent to Mr. Har-
sourt of the Grown-Office, who immediately came to
him, and after fome Difcourfe wiihhim, Mr. Har-
court went to the Lord Chief Juftiee’s Chambers,
to know when he would be attended about it, who
appointed the Day following, being Tburfdﬁy the
2oth, at 8 a Clock at Night; but the Chief Ju-

Ittce not coming from the Huui’e of Lords till after

8 a Clock at Night, he woud not bear the Buli-
nefs, but put it off till Sarurday Morning, and then
Sir Edward, though very ill of the Gout, weat
with his Brother to attend the Lord Chief Juftice
with the Fabeas Corpus in his Hand; and finding
Sit Harry Dutton Colt there, and as he thinks Sic
Talbot Clerke, and one Mr. Morgan 3 pretended
Nephew of Mrs. Clerke’s alfo : Sir Edward did tell
the Chtef Juftice, that he had the Habeas Corpus in
his Hand, but it was wrong diretted ; for that he
and his Brother, and their Agents, had the Cufto-
dy of Mrs Clerke, and not Mrs. Turnor, for fhe was

only
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fo his Lordmip adjourned the Debate till Saturday
next at 11 of the Clock in the Morning, being the
22d of February.

The next Day being Friday the 21ft, Sir Ed-
ward fent for his Servant Benfon from Mrs. Cerke’s
Houfe, whither he was forced to fend him and
another Perfon; fo that there were four to keep
the Doors from the Mob ; and Mrs. Clerke’s two
Footmen, and Sir Talbot Clerke’s, Mrs. Stukely’s, and
two Chairmen of the Lord Cudogan’s, who all
threatened every Hour almoft, efpecially towards
the Evening, -to break open the Doors; and
Mrs. Clerke’s younger Footman, William AMills, cry’d
out in the Street that his Miftrefs was murdered,
and they fhould look at the Back-Door to fee, if
fhe was not carried out in the Night.

The faid Berfon did make an Affidavit before
Mr., Juftice Powys concerning Sir Harry’s threat-
ning to break open the Door that Day. For which,
fee Benfor’s Affidavit.

And the next Day when he appeared before the
Chief Juftice he produced it, and defired it might
be read, which was done; and the Chief Juftice
taking little notice of it, Sir Edward defired thag
he might have liberty to cram the Lie down
Siv Harry Dutton Colt’s Throat, fince he had the
Impudenc to deny fo plain a Truth which was now
{fworn, and Sir Harry in the Room prefent.

But the Chief Juftice not minding it any further,
called the two Dogors, AMead and Freind, who
gave their Reafons why they advifed Mrs. Clerke’s
Confinement,

Dr. Mead, after having given fome fhort Aca
count of the Cafe, told my Lord Chief Juftice,
That the groundlefs Jealoufie fhe had of her Friends
baving a Defign upon her Life, and the Manner
and Circumftances of her entertaining this Fan-

e cys
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med, the Brothers agreed to him, and Dr. Hale
to be joyned with him. Then there muft be two
Ladies appointed to go with them, and there
being feveral Ladies of Quality, as the Countefs
of Winchelfea, the Vifcounte(s Scudamore, the Lady
Betty Spelman, the Lady Katharine Fones, and
many others, the laft Two were named by the
Chief Juftice, and confented to by the two Bro-
thers, but with a Provifo, that the Ladies fhould
not fee Mrs. Clerke without the Do&ors. But the
Ladies being in hafte wou’d go that very Hour to
have the View ; fo the Chief Juftice difmifs’d the
Company, and the two Brothers fent Mr. Edward
Turnor, the Son of Mr. Arthur Turnor, to wait up-
on the Ladies: But Sir Edward fearing the too
much Complaifance of his Nephew, though he
had not been out of his Chamber for fome Time
till his appearing now before the Lord Chief
Juftice, yet ventured in a Coach to his Siflers
after them, and made what hafte was polli-
ble. And yet as he feared, he found the two
Ladies were above with his Sifter and his Ne-
phew, and fo they continued till 6 a Clock in the
Evening, from one a Clock, before the Doéors
could be got together, though Sir Harry Dutton
Colt went directly from the Lord Chief Juftice’s
Chamber, to Tom’s Coffee-houle in Covent-Garden,
and asking Dr. Leverr, whom he found there, to
go along with him to Mrs. Clerke’s, the Doéor
refufed to go, unlefs Dr. Hale was to meet him.
Sir Harry told him Dr. Hale would be there, upon
which they went to Fermyn-flreez, and there carri-
ed him to feveral Ladies, who were got together
in Mrs. Stukely’s Houfe, at which the Doctor was
very much furpriz’d; and being told he was to
infpe&t Mrs. Clerke, he came to her Houfe, and
there found Sir Edward, who telling the Docétor,
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to mention one Word of it; but by a genteel
Forgetfulnefs, left that Lying Report to remain
upon them. But God be thanked, the intended
Venom of fcandalous Tongues, may in Time, be
wiped off, as the two Brothers are fure Mrs- Clerke
(if fhe has her Senfes) muft now do, having a full
Poffelion of all her Goods, now Mr. Coats is come
to Town, who help’d to take the Inventory of her
Goods, and fealed up the Doors, and faw her in
one of her fits of Di&ra&ion : by which means
fhe has been told the Truth by him, which fhe
has hardly ever been fince her firft falling into
her Lunacy. “For the Truth is, great Induftry has
been ufed all the Time of her Illnefs, to keep all
Perfons from her, but fuch as were in the Intereft
of thofe, who, taking the Advantage of her Con-
dition, make a perfect Prey of her. Of this Mrs. Lew:s
is a Witnefs, who was told by Mrs. Clerke one
Morning when fhe got away from Mrs. Stukely,
that they had endeavoured to prevent her fecing
Mr. Lew:s and her felf. And fo very careful are
they that fhe fhould fee no Body befides their own

Creatures, that Mrs. Stukely will neither fuffer her -

to go abroad, nor fo much as to lie alone; tho’

tis well known, fhe could never endure a Bed-
Fellow. If her Diforder be really fuch, that fhe

is not fit to be trufted alone; why all this Cla-
mour againft her former Confinement? If fhe be
perfeétly in her Senfes, why all this Care to keep
her Friends from feeing her? But to return to our
Narrative,

The Infpeftion of Mrs. Clerke was made on Sz-
turday the 22d of February; the Report was to be
made when the Chief Juftice fhould appoint; who
being apply’d to, did order the Thur/day follow-
ing, being the 27th of February, for Mrs. Clerke’s
Tryal, as her Agents were plealed to call it.

In
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led her down Stairs, but unluckily their Journey
was ftopp’d for a while ; for one of the Porters be-
ing below in the Garden, when the vutward Doors
were broke open,ran and fattened the Door,and put
up the Chain, fo that the Jultice could not fally out.

~ Who then looking through the Key-hole called out
- to fome in the Sireet, and bid them get over the

Wall of Sir Robert Worfley’s Garden, which join’d
to Mrs. Clerke’s 5 and one of Sir Robert Worfley’s
Servaats, his Mdter not being at home, and not
going up Stairs to his Lady, (who was at home, to
ask lLeave) did let four Perfons go through the
Houfe, and {o got over the Wall, and forced open
the Back-doors tn the Garden, and came up Stairs,
and then cried, We hope we are ftrong enough
now for you; and then went to break open the
Fore-doors again; but the Porters fecing that ’twas
in vain to refift, they then went into the Parlour
and left them to themfelves. [ See.the Afhdavits
of Dole and Potley.”] And that Morning Mr. AMor-

gan came to the Door, and told Edward Benfon
that he heard the Lady of that Houfe was going

to be murdered, aad faid he believed it to be trae.
[See ‘Benfon’s Affidavit.] Two of thofe Perfons
own’d themfelves to be the Lord Cadogan’s Chair-
men. For which fee Potley and Dole’s Affidavits.
When the Street-doors were again broke open,
Sir Thomas Clarges, with Mrs. Stukeley and feveral
others, led Mrs. Clerke to Mrs. Stukeley’s Houfe in

great Trinmph. But before they went they turn’d |

the Nurfes and two Porters into the Street, and
put Hugh Stone and Willieam Milis into Poffeflion of
the Houle ; and then feat the Conftable to fetch
the Nurfes and Porters, who kept them in Cufto-
dy above an Hour, and then fent for them to
Mrs. Stukeley’s Houfe, where they faw Sir Thomas
Clarges and Sir Harry Duston Colry Sit Talbot C‘Ierkg
| - an
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late, or elfe that Morning ;) and firft the learned
Dr. Shadwell was called, who averr’d, That he be-
lieved Mrs. Clerke to be well in her Senfes, and
free from any Lunacy as any Perfon whomfoever.
And being ask’d by Mr. Turnor, if ever he had cured
any Body of fuch a Diftemper? he reply’d, Yes,
once an Jrifh-man: So that we were to go far e-
nough for that Proof, Which after all, could be no
better than an Irih Evidence— He had it feems
that Morning been in clofe Confultation at Mrs.
Stukely’s, for near two Hours: [ don’t mean in
Confultation with any of his Brethren; but either
to teach Mrs. Clerke her Leflon, or to learn his
own, Dr. Bateman, the Prefident of the College of
Phyficians, who was the next that gave Teftimo-
ny, was fetch’d that Morning in hafte by Sir Tal-
bot Clerke, who defir’d him to come to a Relation of
his in Fermyn-ftreet, to confult with Sir Fobn Shadwell
about her [llnefs. He went with him to Mrs. Stuke-
ley’s, and as foon as he came there, was hurry’d into
the Coach, and had Mrs. Clerke’s Cafe there firft rela-
ted to him. And it was, no doubt, very proper to
furprize a Man of his Integrity, who if longer Time
had been given him, might probably have refufed
to go: And ’tis plain, that they who employ’d
hin did not think him a Man fo fit for their pur-
pofe; for afterwards, the other Phyficians at-
tended Mrs. Clerke without him. Dr. Cockburne
was the other Phyfician who thought her in her
right Senfes: He juft faw her the Night before,
being perfuaded by Sir Thomas Clarges, and brought
thither in Expe&ation of meeting Sir Hans Sloane,
and was appointed the next Morning to meet ae
gain. It appears therefore upon the whole Mat-

ter, That one of the Phyficians was furprized,

and another decoyed: But we don’t find that
Siv Fobn Shadwell was at all averfe to an Em-
ploy ment,
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ternoon with her Brothers Turnors, who were given
to fleep, for they were a drowf{y Family. Then
fhe faid they advifed her to Afs’s Milk, but that
did her no good, for there being no Grafs, the
Affes were fed with Graines and fuch nafty Stuoff,
and bad Hay in the Winter-time, fo that the
Milk could not have any good Effe& upon her.
Then fhe had a mind to come up to Town, and
fent to her Brother to defire him to call at her
Houfe to fee if the Painting was done, and at
laft he fent her word that all was done, bat not
dry. Then fhe fent again to know if the Rooms
did not fmell very bad, and defired her Brother
(as fhe ufed to call Sir Edward) to call upon
Mrs. Flower to make good Fires to take away the
Smell of the Paint, which he did. By that Time
’twas towards Chriffmas : And her Niece telling
her the Waters did very well with her, better
than they ufed to do, fhe would tarry till Chriff-
mas-day was over, that fhe might receive the Sa-
crament on that good Day. But fhe had fent to
her Brother to defire him to go again in a Morn-
ing to her Houfe, and not to take any Snuff that
Morning, for thofe {weet Smells would prevent
him from fmelling the Paint : For he was a mighty
Taker of Snuff, and the greateft Vertuofo in Eng-
land of a Gentleman, and made all his Snuff him-
felf. Then fhe told him fhe went to Mr. Ernley’s,
who liv’d near Sandy-lane, and ftay’d with bim till
the Monday after 5 and he fhew’d her all his fine
Water-works, as his Fer-d’ean’s and Cafcades, and
octher Works which he had made fince his coming
from his Travels, for he was abroad about three
Years 3 but the Ground being very low and very
wet fhe got Cold, ard he calied one of his Work-
men to take her up in his Arms, which he did,
and fet her down in a drier Place ; and went into

the
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Arms to her Chamber, and hall’d and pull’d, and that
when fhe was brought up fhe was ty’d in her Bed,
and an Iron thruft into her Mouth which had a
great round Knob upon it, which hurt her Lips
and Moath fo very much that fhe could fcarce touch
her Mouth ; and then they put a great Gag into
her Mouth and tied down her Hands, to force
her to take Things they gave her, and that by
ftriving with her they had made her fo fore that
fhe was all over black and blue ;3 and that they
almoft ftarved her, and when they did give her
Meat, ’twas at fuch Times that fhe did not care
for it. Then-the Chief Juftice told her, fhe had
given no Account of the Spirits fhe faid fhe had
feen, when fhe went to Kenfington ; to which fhe
anfwer’d, A Shadow, a Shadow, Sir, ’twas nothing
elfe. As fhe was running on in this rambling
Manner, Sir Fobn Shadwell whifper’d her, and ad-
vifed her not to proceed any farther for fear of —
and at the fame Time Mrs. Srukely wifely pull’d
her by the Sleeve. And fhe remaining ftill in
her Chair, Sir Edward defired the Chief Juftice
to ask her how fhe came to tear the Bank-Bills
into twenty Pieces, which he had then in his
Hand ? But the Lord Chief Juftice anfwered, that
was not before him, nor the taking her Will, and
the Lottery-Tickets out of her Cabinet, after
fhe had been confined to her Chamber : And the
Lord Chief Juftice was defired to call the Nurfes
to anfwer for themfelves, for they were in the
Chamber, bat he did not call them. - Then ’twas
defired, that the Apothecary might be heard to
anfwer what he knew, and Sir Edward pull’d him
forward to tell his Story, but the Lord Chief Ju-
ftice intending not to hear any more, call’d for
feveral Affidavits, which his Clerks brought to
-him, and he figned them : Which Sir Edward ta-
D king
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to bind them over to the Seflions, or King’s Bench,
and he would be obliged to profecute them: His
Lordfhip pafled it over, and faid, they ought not
to have done fo.

Then 'twas demanded, that Mrs. Clerke might
have Pofleflion of her Houfe ? to which the two
Brothers reply’d, They had no Defire to be Goal-
ers, fince his Lordfhip had declared Mrs. Clerke to
be of right Underftanding, nor did they defire
to have any more the Cuftody of her Eftate ; for
what they had done was only for their Sifter’s
Welfare, both as to her Health and Eftate; and
to keep the .laft from being embezzled : And
therefore if the Chief Juftice would fay they had
done wrong, meaning the two Brothers, they
would give up the Pofieflion immediately to Mrs.
Clerke’s two Guardians, whom his Lordfhip had fet
over her. But he only faid, that the two Bro-
thers had not done amifs ; that he would not
order Pofleflion, but thought they would do very
well if they did give it up. Upon which they
did fend Mr. Spdrke and one Mr. George Downs to
thofe Perfons in Poflcflion at Mrs. Clerke’s Houfe,
to quit, if by her own Defire, the Pofleflion to
Dr. Bridoes and Mr. Walcotr, which was done ac-
cordingly 5 and Dr. Bridges and Mr. Walcott gave
their Receipt of the Polltflion on the Bottom of
the Order to Mr. Sparke and Mr. Dowsis, as may
be feen by a Copy of the faid Order annex’d to

the Depofitions.

The
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The Depofition of Hugh Stone, taken before Sir
Harry Dutton Colt, Bart. One of his Majeltys
Juftices of the Peace for the County of AMiddlefex.

HO [asth, that be bath been a Servant to Dame

Sarah Clerke near eighteen Years, in the Qua-
lity of a Butler 3 and that in all that Time he hath not
obferved her guilty of any AL of Lunacy 5 and be
is furprized to find ber locked up in her Chamber, her
Servants not permitted to come to her as ufual, and two
ftrange Men placed at her Doors to give Anfwers, not
permitting thofe of her Friends and Relations to vifit her,
or [ee what Condition [he isin: And when [he was for-
ced up Stairs, [hriek’d outy, and called for Help, and.
defired to be realeafed 3 and before [he was carried up .
Stairs, one Mrs. Bridges came to wvifit her, wha was
refufed Entrance into her Houfe, and that [he got to
a Window and begg’d of Mrs, Bridges, as a Chriffi-
any to relieve hery, and that (he would get the Earl
of Carnarvon, or the Reverend Dotlor Bridges to affift

ber.

Jurat Coram me die S Re
Februarii (8. 174Z. Hugh Stone.
H. D. Colt

The Depolition of Mrs. Eleanor Pilkington,

HO [aith, that [he was hired by Dame Sarah
Clerke on Saturday laff, as her Servant ; that
fhe continued in ber Houfe till the next Day, that in the
_Time [he was there, [he did not obferve fer guilty of
any Sort of MﬂJﬂeﬁ; and that during the Time [he was
therey fhe [aw great Violence ufed to her, in forcing hey
to her Chamber, and locking her up, and putting a Guard
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The lnformatnun of Sir Talbot Clerke, Bart. taken
. before me, upon Oath, this 18th Day of Febru-

ary, 1717.
TH IS Informant depofeth, That he hath feen the

three Informations contained in the former Part
of this Paper ; smd Jaith, That he doth well know Dame
Sarah Clerke iz the [ame inentioned 5 and that the [aid
Lady Clerke hath a confiderable Fointure, reputed Seven
Hﬂndrad Pounds per Annum, a Rent-Charge 5 and is
poffeft of a wvery.confiderable perfonal Effate, Fewels, and
other Things of wery great Value, and that be dothves
rily believe [he is now kept in her own Foufe by Mary
Turnor, Niece of the [aid Dame Sarah Clerke, un-
der Confinement, and against ber Will and Confent of hey
the [aid Dame Sarah Clerke : And that the [aid Mrs.
Turnor, with other Perfons in her Affiftance, do pres.
vent the Fricunds and Relations of the faid Sarah Clerke,
to come near ber, by which there is great Danger of her
i;’fmg injured in her faid Effate, as this Deponent verily

elieves.

Jurat Coram. Talbot Clerke.
H. D. Colt.

- The Information of Edward Kirtland, jun.of Waﬁ
haden, in Northamptonfhire, Farmer.

Middlefex ard Weltminfter, ff.
W H O upon bis Oath, [aithy, That be came to Town
to treat with Dame Sarah Clerke zbout a Farm,
Part of  her Eftate i» Northamptonfhire ; that on Sa-
turday Morning laft, be had Adm::mhw to ber, and
in about an Hours Conver[ation with her, he abferved

ber to be a Lady that ﬂndarﬁ‘aad ber Euf inefs as well
k.i“
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in her right Senfes, and believes her to be fo ftill, if by
ill ufage they bave not made her otherwife. And further
Jaithy that a few Days before [he was difcharged, her La-
dy diretled ber to let the Lady Clerke, Lady Bing, .
Mrs. Morfon, Ars. Little, Ars. Mafters, Ars. Stuke-
ly, and others of her Friends and Relations might fee her
when they came 5 and notwithffanding her Lady’s Or-
ders, Mrs. Mary Turnor contraditted them, and tho’
feveral of them came, they was nor permitted to fee her,

And furtber [aith not.

Jurat Coram me die
Februarii 19. 1741. Elizabeth Tyrrill,

H. D. Colt.

A ME Bridget Lytton, Elizabeth Stukely,

Mrs. Charlot Moftyn, William Mills, Hugh
Stone, feverally make Qath, that they attempted this
Morning (fince they was [erved with my Lord Chief Fu-
ftice’s Order) to [ee Dane Sarah Clerke, but was refu-
fed by two Men that kept the Door,

Jurat Coram me die

Februarii 19. 17}2. Bridget Lytton.
H. D. Colt. E. Stukely. |
Charlott Moftyn.

William Mills.
Hugh Stone.

Lizabeth Stukely, of German.ftreet, in the Pa-

rifb of St. James’s, in the County of Middlefex,
Widow, maketh Oath, and [aith, that [he, this Deponent,
hath known, and being converfant with her Neighbour,
Mprs, Sarah Clerke, who lives in German-{treet afore-
faid, for thefe twelves Years laft paft, and upwards; and

during that Time, always efreemed the [aid Sarah Clerke
, E 3 10
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committed, to be fo barbaroufly ufed by two Bedlamite
Nurfes 2 And this Deponent [aith, that to this Expre/-
fion of the faid Sarah Clerke, the [aid Mary Turnor
replyed to ber, and in an indecent and rude manner, [aid,
Yes, Madam, you are Mad 3 and rhen the [aid two Nur-
Jes going down Stairs, the [aid Mrs. Sarah Clerke took
this Deponent by the Hand, and conpjured, and entreat-
ed ber, this Deponent, not to leave her 5 and upon this,
fhe, the faid Sarah Clerke, and this  Deponent, wen
down Stairs into the Parlour, where ber Nephew Tur-
nor, the Son of the above -named Arthur Turnor,thes
was. And the [aid Sarah Clerke, feeing him there,
calmly, and without the leaft Sign of Diftrattion, inqui-
red of her [aid Nephew the Meaning of her [aid ill Ufqu 2
And the [aid Turnor, the Nephew, thereupon [aid, it
was thought proper for ber Health, and defired [he would
be eafy withit: And the [aid Sarah Clerke, ro this
Reply of her faid Nepbew, returned bim an Anfwer in the
Words, or to the Effeét following, viz. Nephew, if you
will come and be in my Houfe for a Month, and obferve
whar mad Aétions I commit, I will be contented to [tay
at bome, but will not go up Stairs whilft thefe mad
Nurfes are in my Houfe, nor will I take one drop from
them, or any Phyfick they would give me 5 and obferve
what I [ay, that Ilaymy Death at your Doors, meaning
(as the Deponent apprebended ) her [aid Broihers, or the
Perfons that fo ill ufed her. _And this Deponent [aith,
“ that on the fame Day, viz. on Saturday laff, and. at
the Time that this Deponent was with the [aid Sarah
Clerke, as aforefaid, Mrs. Bridges, the Wife of the
Honourable Dr, Bridges, came in a Vifit to the [aid
Sarah Clerke, but was refufed Entrance into her Houfe,
by the Perfons who were placed to guard or [hut up the
Door : And upon this, the Servant of the [aid Mrs. Sa-
tah Clerke, that was then prefent, by the Command of
bis Miftrefs, open’d the Window ;, and the [aid Sarah
Clerke then looking out, direéted ber Difcourfe to the [aid
My s, Bridgesin the Streetyand [aidto bery Niece Bridges,
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was from about Eleven of the Clock in the Morning, to
about Five of the Clock in the Afternoon 5 and [aith, That
in all that Time the [aid Mrs. Sarah Clerke demeaned
and behaved berfelf as a Perfon endued with good Reafon
and Fudgment, and was not then or at any Time of that
Day, during this Deponent’s continuance with her, as
aforefaid, in the Judgment of this Deponent, mad or luna-
tick, nor in any refpell diffempered or difordered as fuch.

Jurat 22 die Februarii

1717. Coram me. E. Stukely.
Parker.

Harles Turnor of Parendon, iz the Gounty of Ef-

{ex, Efq; maketh Qath, That on or about the Sth or

6th Day of this Inftant February, be this Deponent bear-
ing thar Sarah Clerke (the Widow of  Clerke, late of
Watford i» Northamptonthire, Efg; deceas’d) who 1s
this Deponent’s Aunt, was indifpofed in ber Health, be this
Deponent then made ber a Vifit at her Houfe in Jermyn-
ftreet in the Parifh of St. James within the Liberty of
Weftminfter, in the Gounty of Middlefex, and then
and there this Deponent, upon difcourfing her, and hear-
ing and obferving ber Words and Difcourfe, didy to the
beft of his Fudgment, think, and werily believe, that [he
was very much difordered in her Under[tanding and Me-
mory, [0 astobe raving and diftralted : And more parti-
cularly, by reafon [he then expreffed ber [elf to this Depo-
nent in this Manner, or to the following Effelt, viz. That
fhe had an important Truth to reveal, and that it would
be to the Honour of this Deponent, and to the Advantage
of the Family, if this Deponent would go about it : Which
was, that King Charles the Second lay with his Sifter,
Princefs Henrietta, the Dutchefs of Orleans, when
fhe was in England, and got her with Child 5 and that
when [he came over, the Duke of Orleans her Husband
found her [0, and told her, that he would have no more ;'a
@
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| Rthur Turnor, Efq; maketh Qath, That the faid

. Charles Turnor came from the faid Mys. Clerke

to this Deponent, and gave him an Account of the above-

mentioned Difcour[e between him the faid Charles Tur-

nor, and the [aid Mrs. Clerke.  That this Deponent

immediately the fame Day, went to the [aid Mrs. Clerke,

and [he then repeated to this Deponent the greateft Part of

the [aid Difcourfe (et forth in the Affidavit of the faid
Charles Turnor. ' '

Jurat 20 die Febroarii
TRy a e, Coram “mé A, Turnor.
Littleton Powys. |

Mﬁry Turnof of the Parifh of St. James, Weft-
1V 1 minfter, Spénfter, maketh Oath, That about a
Fortnight fince f{he this Deponent did hear her Aunt
Mys. Sarah Clerke (with whom [he bas lived many Years

give Orders to her Servant Hugh Stone rogo to Kin

George,’ and tell bim be came from AMadamoifell Toorn-
Warr, who defired him to come to hery fhe the faid Sarah
Clerke having Bufinefs of great Importance with bis Ma-
Jeftys but in cafe his Majefty could not come, then that
his Majefty would fend one of bis Chief Lords, or to that or
the like Effect. That the fame Day the [aid Sarah Clerke
direfted Blizabeth Tyrrel ber then Woman to order Fives
to be made in the Parlour, Drawing-room, and Clofet,
and Wax-Candles to be put in the inward Rooms, and or-
dered the [aid Elizabeth Tyrrel to let all Company that
came, Who might be ready to receive the King, or chief
Minifter or great Lord that the King fhould fend, ifbe
did not come himfelf, That on Wednefday laff was Se’-
night the faid Sarah Clerke having been at Kenfington,
at ber Return Home told this Deponent [he had that Day
Jeen ber Coufin Hartftong, the late Bifhop of London-
derry, and that he look’d as well and chearfully as ever

Jhe faw bim, or to that Effect » Which faid Bifhop has been
dead
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Rﬁchel Pordage of the Parifh of St. James Weft-
minfter, Spinfter, maketh Oath, That [he bath
for many Tears been well acquainted with, and hath for
Jome Months laf} paft lived in the Houfe with Mrs. Sa-
rah Clerke, and that near a Fortnight fince the [aid
Sarah Clerke told this Deponent [he believed this De-
ponent was an innocent young Woman, and that [he the
Jaid Sarah Clerke had a good Refpeit for ber this De-
ponenty but that [he this Deponent might be the innocent
Caufe of poifoning her the [aid Sarah Clerke by a dia-
bolical Power of laying a Medicine. Then the [aid Sa-
rah Clerke asked this Deponent if [he knew Mercury ?
to which this Deponent anfwered, No 5 then [aid the
faid Sarah Clerke o this Deponent, May not you be
the innocent Caufe, and through Inadvertency give me &
Medicine that may be the Caufe of my Death? And
this Deponent further f[aith, that about a Week (fince,
the [aid Sarah Clerke being in her Bed-chamber called
this Deponent, and charged her to [fand with ber Face to
the Curtains of the Bed, whilfF [he the faid Sarah Clerke
[poke to one Weblter a Schoolmafler, that be the [aid
Weblter might not lay bis Hands diabolically on the
faid Curtains, And further faith, that on Wednefday
laft was Se’night the [aid Sarah Clerke having many
Perfons with her in the Houfe as Vifitorsy talked wvery

..??7

extravagantly and different from her ufual Manner of

Difcourfe and Underftanding, infomuch that Sir Ro-
bert Clerke, one of the Company, turned to this Deponent,
and asked, why his Aunt Clerke was permitted fo to
expofe her[elf 2 or to that Effeit. _And this Deponent
urther [aithy that from what is above [et forthto be
Jaid by the [aid Sarah Clerke, (which # true in Ef-
feét, and in Words as near as this Deponent can re=
member) as alfo from many other particular Sayings and

Tranfattions of the [aid Sarah Clerke, [he this Dea
| ponent
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King Charles the Second, and others, which this De=

ponent cannot believe a Fer[on in right Senfes would have

talked of.

Jurat Viceflimo die Fe-

- bruarii 17;3. Coram me The. Pryor..

Parker.

f Ary Avon, of the Parifb of St. James’s Weft-
minfter, Spinfter, maketh Oath, That fhe this
Deponent havin _grmd Mys. Mary Turnor, as ber

vice
Clerke, her [aid Lﬂdy’i Aunt, in mhaﬁ Houfe the
faid Mys. Turnor lives. And faith, that fhe this

Deponent hath beard, and verily believes, that the [aid"
Sarah Clerke now 15, and for three Weeks laft paft,

and upwards, hath been wvery much difordered in ber
Mind and Underftanding, [he this Depsnent havin

been told by Blizabeth Tyrrell, (who lately H-:;éé
mith the [aid Mrs. Clerke, and [erved ber in her Cham-
ber) that the [aid Mrs. Clerke hath been guilty of
very many wild and extravagant Paflages and Tran/-
altions, [ome of which this Deponent particularly re-

members, and are as follows, (viz.) That [be, the [aid.

Elizabeth Tyrrell, Hugh Stone, (the [aid Ms.
Clerke’s Butler) and others of the [aid Mys. Clerke’s
Servants, told this Deponent, That on or abour the §tH
or 6th Day of this Inffant February, the [aid Mys.
Clerke gave to William Mills (ber the faid Mis.
Clerke’s Foot-boy) a Guineato go to Sir Edward Tur=
nor, and defire him to [end for the Lord Harcourt,
and Sir Conftantine Phipps, to come and judge her
the [aid Mys. Clerke’s Family, to clear the Innocent,
and condemn the Guilty 5 and that the faid Sarah
Clerke then told the faid William Mills, Sir Edward
Turnor would give him another Guinea And this

' Depos

Waiting-woman, upwards of three Years, in whofe Ser-
[ﬁr now s, 15 well acquainted with Mrs. Sarah
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next to the [aid Mprs. Clerke’s Houfe) to get over bis
Tard or Garden Wall, into the faid Mrs. Clerke’s Yard
or Garden. That [oon aftermards, be this Defamm, faw
four Men (two of whom own’d themfelves to be the Lord
Cadogan’s Chair-men) come in at the Garden or Yard-
Door of the [aid Mrs. Clerke’s Houfe, who faid, they
hoped they were then firong enough for them (meaning
this Deponent and his Companion, who were [o employed to
keep the faid Door) 5 That [oon afterwardsthe fame Confta-
ble came to the [aid Houfe, and commanded this Deponent
to go with him, and took this Deponent to Mrs. Stukely’s
Houfe before the faid Sir Thomas Clarges and Sir
Harry Dutton Colt, who were there, and the [aid Sir
Harry Duttonl Colt then told this Deponent, if be wou’d
not find Bail, he the [aid Sir Harry Dutton Colt
would [end him (meaning this Deponent) to Prifon
whereupon this Deponent told the [aid Sir Thomas Clar-
ges and Sir Harry Dutton Colt, that the faid Sir
Edward Turnor would be one of his Bail, but afier
fome time this Deponent was releafed.

Jurat Viceflimo die Febru-

arii 1713. Coram me; Geo. Dowle.
Littleton Powys.

Atthew Potley, Gitizen and Pin-maket of Lon-

dony one of the two Men appointed by Sir Bda

ward Turnor, Kt and Arthur Turnot, Efg; to look
after the Street-door of Mrs. Sarah Clerke’s Houfe in
German-ftreet, maketh Oath, That on Wednelday
the 26th Day of this inftant February, in the Afternoon,
be this Deponent having been in the Yard or Garden be-
longing to the [aid Mrs. Clerke’s Houfe, and coming
into the faid Houfe, heard [ome difturbance, and found
fome Strangers in the Paffage, and going up Stairs, and
the Street-door opem, whereupon this Deponent ask’d bis
Companion what was the Matter ? who anfwered in a Sur=
- : F a P?’l:l.fj
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were near a dozen) befides Sir Thomas Clarges,
Sir Harry Dutton Colt, Sir Talbot Clerke, one
Mr. Morgan and others there prefent, if [he (meaning
the faid Magdalen Paine) was not amazed ro be fent
for to one (meaning Mrs. Clerke) fo well ? [he the [aid
Magdalen Paine anfwered, that [he the [aid Magdalen
Paine had been fent for to fuch as were not fo bad
(meaning as the [aid Mrs. Clerke). And then this De-
ponent and the [aid Magdalen Paine were told by the
Jaid Sir Thomas Clarges and Sir Harry Dautton
Colt, that they might go about their Bufinefs.

Jurat 27 die Februarii
2717. Coram me Anne Barnes,
Littleton Powys.

MAgdalen Paine of Cripplegate Parifh, Lon-
don, Spinfter, one of the two Nurfes who ate

tended Mrs. Sarah Clerke by Dr. Hale’s Direttion,
maketh Oath, That on Wednefday the 26:k Day of
this Inftant February, about Three of the Clock in the
Afternoon, the [aid Dr. Hale, this Deponent, and Anne
Barnes, (the other of the [aid Nurfes) being with the
faid Mys. Sarah Clerke in her Bed-chamber, [be this
Deponent heard [ome Body coming up Stairs, whereupon
fhe this Deponent went to the Door, and upon opening the
fame [aw Mrs. Stukely coming up Stairs, and then this
Deponent locked the [aid Door, and put the Key thereof
in her Pocket. That the [aid Mys. Stukely (vbferving
this Deponent to lock the [aid Door) [aid, Nay, we
will come in, That then this Deponent called the [aid
Dr. Hale to ber, and told bim Mprs. Stukely was
coming up Stairs, whereupon the Doltor asked this Depo=
nent who that Mrs. Stukely was ? and how [he came 1n 2
To which this Deponent anfwered, That [ome of thens
foolifh Fellows (meaning the Men appointed to keep the
Street-door of the [aid Mrs. Clexke’s Houfe) had let
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them under ber Bolfter, [o the Gentleman defired to fee
them s [o with per(wading (he fetch’d them and gave
bim, and charged him to keep them from the King,
for [he would not have the Ladies expofed — The
Nurfe ask’d ber for the Bills ? [he [a:sd they had tore
them to pieces, for fhe [ee Pieces of them flying a=
bout the Room 5 the Nurfes told ber they did [uppofe

fhe kad gave them to [ome Body 5 but [he [aid we would '

fetch Madam Trunor, [he knew where they were : But
fHill [be [aid [he [ee Pieces of them flying abour the
Room  but when [he came to get up, we [aw the Pieces
[catter’d about the Bed ; fo then we asked ber what it
was, [be [aid the Bills that was tore all to Pieces, fo we
asked bow [he came to do fo? [he [aid they was [ome=
times in her Stockings, [ometimes in her Shoes, [ome-
times under her Backy [ometimes under her Bolfter,
fometimes they were got down to the Feet of the Bed ,
fo we picked up all the Pieces and pinned them up in
Paper, and we asked ber bow fhe could do fo? and how
Jhe would get the Money? [he [aid [he did not fear
getting the Money, for the Lord Carnarvon was an
honourable Gentleman, and [he would [et him in the
Front of the Battle, and be would get the Money. —
Then [be brought me ber black Velvet Petticoar and
gave mey and bid mre go take which Suit of Cloathes
I liked beft, and [he would have given me balf a Crown,
and I would not haveit, [othen [he would have me take
her Night-gown for the Half Crown [he owed me; [he

- put me on & Nightrasly and would put Nurfe on another,
and bid us lead ber down into the Parlour and fit there
With her 3 and would have us lead her to Sir Robert
Worfley’s and thruft her in there, and order ber
Coach to get ready, and the Doitory and [be and I put
on a4 clean Nightraily [hould go into the Park together. --
She flew in a Paffion, and [aid, fome Body had come and
we afleep, and bad ftollen the Feathers out of her Bed ;
avd 1 perfwaded ber to the contrary 5 then fhe cried out,
and [ome Body had come and ftollen her Bed, [he raved,
and
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4% Hour long for old Flower and I, and [he [aid, 1
leed inwardly, and made Nurfe get: and blow up a
Lood Fire, and put to my Stomach, but’ Nurfe told her
L was well and- laugh’d, but fhe [aid I groand in Spi-
Tity and made Nurfe go backward and formard and
bring me warm Cloaths for my Stemach, and: call’d
Madam Turnor to come and belp me, and told her
fhe bad Death in ber Room, and fhe fhould belp me,
and I told her I was very well, but fhe [aid, Ob, Child,
don’t [peak, it will \make you bleed the more.

Then [he would often take up. ail hér Petticoars, amd
put down ber Stockings and praybare knee’d, and then
would get up and Read in another Place and . bray,
and [o go round the Room.— There was a blue Silk
Quilt lay on her Bed, there [he made the Nurfe come
and turn the Fringe under, for. it defiled her, then fhe
faid, O take it away for it defiles me, I am a pure
Virgin, O pray turn it up arop of the Quilt, [o we turn'd
st up a top s then fhe cried, O dear! it defiles me, take
(3t quite away and pull it quite off, for I am pure -and
undefiled 5 [0 we, to dblige ber, pull’d it off 1 "

M. Coates, Feb. 16th, 1717,
WE being informed that you did make our dear Si-
Jrer Clerke’s Will, and. by thas Means been' ac-
_quainted with fome, or moSt of ber Concerns.

_And you, My. Arthur Sparke, having audited most
_of our dear Sifter’s Incomes, of her Jesnture, and other
of ber Affairs ; ' :

We ber two Brothers, do make it ouy earnest Request,
That you Two will do 15 the Favour, to go tomorrow Morn-
ing, being the 17th Inflant, to her Houfe in Jermin-
ftreet, and there caufe her Cabinet where fhe kept ber Mo-
ney and Fewels to be fealed up, and carried into the Din-

ing-Room, and there open the Cabinet in the Prefencesof

Jome Witne(fes, and_ take an Arcount of what .Money,
Jewels, and Bauk-Bills, and Bouds fhe "bas by ber, or

H??y
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This is our Requeftywhich if you two pleafe to perform,
you'll wery much oblige
Your moft humble Servants,

( Superfcribed ) This to
Charles Coats, Efq; and Edw, Tllfilur,
to Arthur Sparke, Gent. _ Arth, Turnor,

A Copy of Mrs. Hartffonge’s Letter, to Mrs. Mary
Turnor, Feb. 13th, 1717,
Madam, :

T is with great Grief that I acquaint my desr Coufin
bow troubled I am, that my good Coufin Clerke was

Jo very ill, and I fear much difordered in ber Head,

and to me [eemed to have a Fever upon her 5 I would
bave waited upon ker home, but her Servant told me,
there was a Friend that was put down in the Street who
was to go home with her. I pray God reffore ber to
ber former Health, and [end fhe may perfeitly recover
the good Senfe [he was always Miftrefs of. If my poor
Coufin was well enough for me to come to Town, Ifhould
not give you this Trouble, which makes me beg the Fa-
veur to know how my Ceufin is this Morning ; for not
only for ber own Merit, but the Honour of being related
muft make me have a double Value for your Family,
#adam, being with great Truth, dear Coufin 'Turnor,

Your moft Faithful
Humble Servant,
J- Hartftonge.
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T HE Reader we fuppofe is tired by this
time, wich all this confufed heap of
Rubbifh ; which, yet it was neceffa-
ry for him to pafs through, in order to arrive

at the End, to which we propofe to conduét

him, viz. the Knowledge of the Truth. And'if
he will impactially lay Things together, we
doubt not he will be of Opinion, that the Phy=
fictans had Reafon to Judge, and the Relari-
ons to at, in the Manner they have done,
with regard to Mrs. Clerke. 'The Cure was
the only Thing that was to be had in view;
and as long as that End was purfued,
and purfued regularly; rthe Perfons: that
were concerned in the Management of hery
can defpife all the Afperfions that have
been induftrioufly caft upon them; whether
by deluded or deligning People, by thofe who
believed, or thofe who disbelieved the Truth
of theirown Reports. Inhumanity and Cru-
elty, are the leaft Things that are laid to the
Charge of thofe Perfons, who are {fatisfi-
ed within themfelves, that they have atted
both with Kindnefs and Integrity towards her
The general Accufation is, That a feverer
and more extraordinary Regimen was ufed,
than Mrs. Clerke’s Cafe feemed to require:
Which Accufation we allow would have
been very juft, had the Suppolition, upon

which it is founded, been true, that the Cafe
' G did
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did not require it. But the plain Matter of
Fa&t is this; eafy and gentle Methods had
been tried by Dr. Mead for three Weeks to-
gether ; and afterwards by him in Conjunttis
on with Dr. Freind for a Fortnight more.
But thefe Methods being ufed without having
the defired Eftet; her Diforder encreafing by
her own Obftinacy and Irregularity, and evi-
dent Signs of Diftraltion appearing upon her,
they recommended her to another Hand and
more f{tri& Difcipline ; but not till they had
found, by five Weeks Experience, that gen-
tle Methods were of no Effet. They might
indeed have gone on longer, if their Defign
had been to pleafe rather than cure, In
foothing, and humouring, and prefcribing to
her to no manner of Purpofe ; and probably
enough, would have had this Advantage to
themfelves, by that Means, that their Con-
duct would have been unqueftioned, though
her Cafe had been more deplorable. We know
not how thefe two Gentlemen will an{fwer
their not getting as much Money out of her
as ever they could ; but we believe this is
the only Irregularity they can be charged
with in their Practice. As for our felves,
what could we do better, or otherwife, for
our Sifter, than by applying to the moft emi-

nent and approved Phyficians, and followin
the Dire&ions, which thofe Phylicians gave
And what could any Phyficians do better,
than having found the Nature of their Patient’s
Diftemper, immediately to put her under a
| pro-
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proper Regulation, before it was grown to
fuch a height, as might have been too ftrong
for any Medicines ? The main Thing to be
blamed, both in the Dottors and us, is their
not calling in Sir fohn Shadwell as they ought
to have done, for then fhe would undoubted-
ly have been pronounced fooner than fhe was,
to be of a fober Mind.

But let us expoftulate this Matter a little
withregard to the Teftimony, that was given
before my. Lord Chief Juftice. It was there
alledged by fome Phyficians, and fome Ladies,
that Mrs. Clerke was perfectly well, and of
[ober Mind. But what if the was ? Does it from
thence follow, that fhe had never been other-
wife ? Is any Thing more common, than for
diftratted Perfons to have fome Intervals of
Senfe, and fometimes pretty long Intervals;
and yet for the Diforder to return with as much
Violence as ever 7 How far any one, who is a-
ble to give a Rational Anfwer to fuch Quefti-
ons, as are put at the Time of Examination be-
fore a Court of Juftice, is deemed by the Law
to be of a [ober Mind, we prefume not to deter-
mine : But {o far we will venture to fay, by the
Rules of common Senfe, without pretending
either to Law or Phyfick, that every one ought
not to be pronounced of « fober Mind, who 1s a~
blear fome certain 1imes to give a reafonable
Anfwer. Mrs. Clerke, ’tis faid, gave a long,
but coberent and moving Account of the whole Cafe,
and her barbarous Ufage. Long indeed it was,

and how coherent, the Reader muft judge:
| G 2 But
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Why Ladies hould be thought better Judges
of Diftempers than Phyficians; why the Te-
ftimony of thofe who had feen her but once,
or twice at moft, fhould be preferable to theirs

who had attended her long, and vifited her

oiten ; and why thofe who thought her in her
Senfes when they faw her, fhould be allowed
to know that fhe was in her Senfes, when they
did not{ee her ; are Points not fo evident to
Men of ordmaiy Underitanding, as they may
perhaps be to Men, that are more learned in
the Law.

There is another Thing to be taken notice
of, as being frequently repeated in the Depofi-
tions, vzz. that Mrs.Clerke was confined againft

herown Confent. This indeed 1s an unaniwera-

ble Objettion, and therefore we muft leave it
as we find 1t; [inceitis the undoubted Privi-
ledge of every free born Subject of England to
be the Judge of his ownCafe, and to tell whe-
ther he be diftratted, and whether he will be
confined or not.

It will appear from the Account that has
been laid before the Reader, that Dr. Levers,
who was altogether difinterefted in this Aﬁ'axr
and agreed upon by all Parties, aswell as by the
Right Honourable Lord who "heard the Caule,
to be as well qualified for an Infpector as any
one that was called, was entirely of Opinion
wich her firft Phyﬁc:ans, that there were evi-
dent Signs of Diftraction: And oneof the La-
dies, whowas appointed to vilicher at the fame
time, came fully into the fame Opinion ; and

it
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trary appeared in every Step that had been
taken. |

The Sum of the Cafe, as far as appeared
in Court, feems to be this: Three Phyficians
were call’d in, to {ee whether four others had
done their Duty ; and by their unaniamous
pronouncing the Lady to be Well, feem plainly
to us to have declar’d in the Aflirmative.
And we heartily wifh, upon many Accounts,
that Mrs. Clerke’s Health may have been re-
ftor’d (tho’ there is too much Reafon to fear
it is not) to as great a Degree, as any of the
Infpettors have affirm’d it to be.

The Occafion of this publick Appeal to the
World (aswas faid in the beginning) was from
a late Pamphlet, publifh’d under the Title of
Myrs. Clerke’s Caje : Publifb’d indeed by the
Bookfeller but a little while ago ; but handed
about and publickly read, not only by the Au-
thor, but by two Perfons of great Diftintion, a
governing Lady, and an abdicated Dean, fome
Months before. Which Pamphlet we are {ure
could notbe wrote by any one, who calls him-
felf a Gentleman, and we are loath to {uppofe
it wrote by any One, who is call’d a Phyfician.
And yet there is fuch a Peculiarity in the
Style (if it may be call’d a Style) as eafily
difcovers it to have been penn’d by a Pretender
to Phyfick ; tho’ the Hints at the latter End
are {o extremely ridiculous as well as foreign
to the Cafe, as plainly demonftrate the Au-
thor (whoever he be) to know little of the
Matter he pretends to write about.

There
























